OO DN B~ W —

— e e e
wn A W —= O 0

AU UL LU o B R DR DR DBRDBRDBRDREDDWLWLLWWOWLWLWLWLWLLWLWIENDNDDNDNDDNDNDDNDNDNDN = — - —
N~ OOVWOINNPRLVNNRL OO ANDRER PN, OOXOIANANRARWRND—~OOVOTIANUNRAWN~OWOVOIRN

APPROVED
MINUTES OF THE MILFORD BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING
July 11, 2022

PRESENT: Paul Dargie, Member John Shannon, Town Administrator (remote)
Tim Finan, Member Tina Philbrick, Executive Assistant
Gary Daniels, Member Andy Kouropoulos, Videographer

Laura Dudziak, Member EXCUSED
Dave Freel, Member

1. CALL TO ORDER, BOARD OF SELECTMEN INTRODUCTIONS & PUBLIC SPEAKING INSTRUCTIONS:
Chairman Dargie called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m., introduced Board members, and then led the audience in the
Pledge of Allegiance.

2. APPOINTMENTS - (Approximate times)

5:30 p.m. — 2" Public Hearing to Update the Current Stormwater Ordinance, Chapter 5.32 — Community Develop-
ment Director, Lincoln Daley

Mr. Daley provided an overview of why the update is needed. The Town’s current stormwater regulations were adopted in
2007 and do not meet the current technical requirements for stormwater retention and treatment and references are outdat-
ed. The ordinance would impact/apply to developments that disturb 20,000 square feet or larger. Mr. Daley reviewed high-
lighted changes to the original document. Engineering analysis and cost would depend on the size of the property and the
type of the property. This permit is an unfunded mandate. GIS coordinates and files are required and Community Develop-
ment can help the land owners with that.

There was some discussion of salt erosion on the roads and what the town may have to do to minimize salt/treatment. We
won’t have to go back and re-do previous projects but we will have to analyze any repairs and updates to all road projects.
If we find contaminants we have to fix the problems.

Selectman Daniels asked if this applies to paving. Mr. Daley said Amherst Street runs off into the Soughean River, when
it’s re-paved; they would have to find ways to treat the water prior to it going into the river. Selectman Daniels asked if we
have to pay for engineering that we did not have to pay for if this were not in effect. Mr. Daley said no.

Selectman Freel said it sound like we would need DPW to re-evaluate what they use to treat the roads and it would cost
more money. Mr. Daley said the idea is to improve the water quality. All best practices could be improved upon. The con-
tainment most concerning is E.coli. Selectman Finan said he’s glad we, the town, are being held responsible and not just
property owners.

Mr. Daley said this is a ten year permit and we are in year four right now. It’s a complex permit. Applicants will be re-
quired to provide a lot of documentation on the projects. Annual reports will have to be submitted to the Town. A templet
will be developed for people to use. It would be primarily larger projects going before the Planning Board. We have seen
about five so far this year; it could be less going forward. Someone from Community Develo9pment will go out and inspect
the properties. They would have to figure out how this will be done. It would be similar to what we do with the building
permit process. They have a permit tracking system that would remind them.

Selectman Finan said it states that the inspections would be at the land owner’s expense, will there be a fee? Mr. Daley said
it’s up to the Board to decide the amount. It could be a minimal cost or be incorporated as part of their permit.

Selectman Daniels asked if there are landowners that would be subject to this plan now, and how would they know. Mr.
Daley said it would apply to new development and it would be on their checklist of items as part as their building permit
process. Selectman Daniels is interesting on knowing what kind of cost the town will be incurring if this is passed.

There was discussion about changing the square footage from 20,000 to 40,000. The town could be facing a lot of cost to
do this unfunded mandate. Mr. Daley said keeping it at 20,000 would capture a larger number of projects. This is not only
for the property owners; it’s for the abutters as well. The erosion can be an issue for both property owners and abutters.

Selectman Finan said there is a waiver process that has some good requirements in it. He suggests a tiered process where
we raise it to 1 acre but if it’s less than that or greater than 5,000 then you would have these requirements. This could give
another tool to regulate it a little more. He’s concerned about how the waiver would work. There was additional discussion
on the waiver process.

Chairman Dargie opened the discussion for public comments.



63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 07/11/2022

Chris Labonte, a Milford resident, asked if a resident would need to follow this permit if they wanted to remove and make a
new lawn. Mr. Daley said if you’re not changing grade, then no. Mr. Labonte asked how a homeowner would know what
has to done to make these changes. Selectman Freel said the contractor would know because they have to apply for the
permit. Mr. Labonte said when the contractor is finished, there isn’t any more reporting. Mr. Daley said correct, but a re-
port will be sent to the owner on a yearly basis. Mr. Labonte feels we should start with 40,000 and change it later if need-
ed.

Selectman Finan said the waiver is actually a lowering of requirements. You still have to create less than five-thousand
(5,000) square feet of new impervious surface; and do not disturb land within one-hundred (100) feet of a surface water
body or wetland. There are still requirements there. There is a middle ground where you can have a lower level of require-
ments for the 20,000 and 40,000 and have the 40,000 kick in for everything. Mr. Daley said they may grant a waiver to any
or all stormwater standards for projects that disturb less than 5,000 square feet. There were different scenarios discussed.

Dale White, a Milford resident, said the MS4 standard is important to stormwater runoff and other things but he feels that
20,000 square feet is too small, he feels that 40,000 is a better number, anything over 100,000 is dealt with by AoT re-
quirements. The smaller number put too much pressure on homeowners. A building permit already captures run-off. This
could add between a $2,000 to $5,000 increases to just a homeowner putting in a single family house in Milford. It can be
revisited. It’s a burden being put on the homeowner.

Katherine Kokko, a Milford resident, has concerns about some of the language in the permit. She asked if the updated ver-
sion could be put on the website. She asked if you are looking to changing the size to 40,000 will you be also increasing the
amount for parcels next to water. Chairman Dargie said no. Ms. Kokko said she is looking at this at an agricultural stand-
point, how this applies. Mr. Daley said there is language in the document that lists what is exempt from this ordinance
which includes agricultural and forestry practices. Ms. Kokko questioned the definition of best management practices in the
glossary which implies an actual plan that needs to be put into place in order to qualify. Mr. Daley repeated that agricultur-
al is exempt from this ordinance. Ms. Kokko asked that language put included to make this clearer. Ms. Kokko asked that
the corrected version of the ordinance be posted on the website for the public and that the Board allow the public time to
review it. Chairman Dargie said it’s pretty clear.

Paul Amato, a Milford resident, said a subdivision going to the Planning board would most likely be 100,000 square feet
and then it goes to an AoT permit. We don’t know what it’s going to cost the town to administer this. Most homeowners
don’t have engineers on speed dial, so they would have to find them at a big cost. What happens if a homeowner sells their
property? Some of us are trying to keep our housing cost a level so that our kids can afford to live in town. This is heading
in the wrong direction. It’s complicated. He feels that we should start at 40,000 square feet and see how it goes.

Selectman Daniels said a lot more work has to be done on this. We have no definition of what maintenance is. Any good
law doesn’t come forward filled with lots of ability with waivers. Either apply or not apply. Chairman Dargie disagrees.
Relying on administration to do check on things is valid. You can’t come up with rules on every scenario in the world.

Selectman Freel made a motion to increase F1 a) from 5,000 square feet to 43,560 square feet, (1 acre) instead of the
20,000 square feet as recommended by Community Development. Seconded by Selectman Daniels. All were in fa-
vor. The motion passed 4/0.

5:45 p.m. — RSA 79E Community Revitalization Tax Incentive for 54 School Street - Community Development Di-
rector, Lincoln Daley

Mr. Daley said the applicant, Milford — HINEC Senior Housing LLC., is before the Board seeking approval of their Milford
Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive Program Application related to the external/intern rehabilitation and expan-
sion of the 24,254 square foot building. The applicant previously received both Board of Adjustment and Planning Board
approvals for the change of use and construction of the 18 units of affordable senior housing, site improvements, and park-
ing lot expansion.

The applicant/property owner submitted the required building permit applications and have been issued building permit to
begin construction. To date, no construction has occurred. The project will include the complete interior renova-
tion/rehabilitation of the existing building and construction of a 3- story, 9,990 gross square foot addition. The existing
building will be structurally modified to provide meet building codes for additional snow loads. All electrical and plumbing
throughout the existing building will be replaced and extended into the addition. Central heat will be provided to existing
building and addition via natural gas fired high efficiency boilers. The staff supports granting of this request. The applicant

2



120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 07/11/2022

meets all the criteria of the 79E requirements, although they only need to satisfy only one. The applicant is asking for a
total of 9 years tax deferred which is the max they can receive.

Selectman Freel said if they meet the criteria, how we are allowed to change it. Chairman Dargie said originally the appli-
cant was asking for only 4 years which is lower than normal. 79E:5 define the duration of the tax period. This project is a
bullseye as it meets all the criteria in the statute. With this RSA you can get up to 5 years for any project, 2 additional years
if the project includes residential housing or 4 additional years if the project includes affordable housing. They already do
this with the current building. There is a two year waiting list for these apartments and this will add 18 units. Mr. Daley said
per the application, they will have a 30+ year affordability restriction added on to it.

Selectman Daniels said he isn’t sure what the definition of affordable housing is. What was once considered affordable is
no longer affordable. Ms. Noel, Assessing Director, said affordable housing is defined through the NH Housing Finance
Authority and it is a 40% to 60% of the medium income in the area. They have tables on their web site. Mr. Daley said the
financing is coming through New Hampshire Housing authority. As far as rent, they will mimic what they are already do-
ing for the tenants in this building.

Selectman Freel asked if we have to approve the whole 9 years or can we break it up. Chairman Dargie said we can choose
from 1 to 9 years and we don’t have to give a reason for the vote. This is shifting the tax burden from them to the rest of
the tax payers.

Selectman Daniels asked how many projects have been approved through 79E. Mr. Daley said 3 or 4, none were longer
than 5 years, but none of them qualified. Chairman Dargie said this hits all criteria. Selectman Finan said this sends a mes-
sage to developers that we are encouraging affordable housing and you will give you an incentive to do it.

Selectman Freel asked what the tax burden would be on the town. Ms. Noel said she doesn’t have that number. Selectman
Finan said it would be aesthetically pleasing to the town and bring money into the town. Selectman Freel said if it’s only a
break for 9 year, after that period, they will have to pay the full amount and how wouldn’t that affect the rent? Ms. Noel
said they have a pilot program with the town that they apply for every year because they are affordable housing for elderly.
When the 79E program ends, they will continue to apply to this program. Chairman Dargie said the whole idea for the pilot
program is that there is no impact on the schools. He is in favor of the 9 years. Especially renovations on the downtown
area and it isn’t costing us hardly anything.

Selectman Daniels moved to table. Seconded by Selectman Freel. The motion failed 2/2.

Selectman Finan made a motion to approve the RSA 79E Community Revitalization Tax Incentive for 54 School
Street because the proposed use is consistent with the town’s Master Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and development/land
use regulations. The Board of Selectmen finds that the qualifying structure satisfies the public benefit requirements
set forth RSA 79-E:7 by:

a. Enhancing the economic vitality of the downtown.

b. Enhancing or improving a culturally or historically important structure.

c. Promoting the preservation and reuse of existing building stock.

d. Promoting development of municipal centers, providing for efficiency, safety, and a greater sense

of community.

e. Providing growth of residential housing in urban or town centers.

The public benefit shall be preserved through the recordation of the required covenant in accordance with

the provisions of RSA 79-E for a term of nine (9) years, beginning on April 1st of the first tax year

commencing immediately after the completion of the renovation and construction work. Seconded by Selectman
Dargie.

Selectman Daniels said he would be voting against this because he needs more information on affordable housing. There
was nothing in the motion about affordability. He moved to table it to have time to check what others in the area are charg-
ing. Selectman Freel is leaning the same way. We just approved the dental after it was all done. He doesn’t see the rush in
approving this.

Mr. Daley said in the application, they said they will be using a 15 year financing with low income housing tax credit pro-
gram through NH Housing Authority. He asked low asked what information did Selectman Daniels want to satisfy his
questions. Selectman Daniels said he wants to know what the monthly rent will be, and what the impact will be on the rest

3



177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 07/11/2022

of the residents picking up the subsidy. NH Housing Authority is going to go to the state to pay for this. He is hearing from
some people that the taxes in town are driving them out. We should be watching out for the tax payers and keeping things
affordable for them. Affordable means something different now than it did 10 years ago. We have to have meaning to this.
Mr. Daley said the town approved this tax exemption program a couple of years ago and supported the idea of the criteria
with this. A couple of meetings ago Selectman Daniels expressed concern about the senior population and this helps that
population. Mr. Daley will find more information on affordable housing and send it out.

Selectman Finan said the Assessor mentioned earlier, affordability isn’t our call; it’s defined by the Housing Authority.
Chairman Dargie said, in regards to the tax payers, the incremental cost on this property is fairly minimal, it’s vacant now.
Selectman Finan said its new revenue. Selectman Freel said the residents that are going to live there will bring money into
town as far as restaurants and other businesses. He asked Selectman Daniels if it were changed to 5 years instead of 9,
would he feel better. Selectman Daniels said it’s about the numbers, so he doesn’t know.

Dale White, Milford resident, said his company was asked to do the site work on the project. Voting on 9 years, 7 years, or
5 years this has no impact on his business. You have a property that has sat vacant for many years. NH lacks 1,900 afford-
able housing properties. This is 18 of those 1,900 properties. Granted there will be a slight impact, but it will bring income
to the town. Properties values around the area of this will increase because of the beautification of the project. There will
be a small cost to them by giving back some of the taxes, but the benefits to downtown is big.

The motion passed 3/1 with Selectman Daniels opposed.

5:55 p.m. — Approval of one (1) Abatement Application for Denial — Map 21 Lot 8 and one (1) Abatement Applica-
tion for Approval — Map 50 Lot 4-2 - Assessing Director, Marti Noel

Ms. Noel said that the first appellant, 22 Myrtle Street, was asked to provide additional documentation where an appraisal
that was provided had a third of the data cut off. The missing data is considered vital to the application. A full and complete
document was requested but the appellant has not complied with that request. She recommends the Board deny the applica-
tion.

Selectman Freel made a motion to approve the Abatement Application for Denial for Map 21 Lot 8 as recommended
by the Assessing Director. Seconded by Selectman Finan. All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

Ms. Noel said the second abatement, Map 50, Lot 4-2 was a request for a reduction in value based on proximity to an on-
going gravel operation. The appellants have requested to speak to this request to the BOS tonight. Although the operation
has been in existence for many years, the operation machinery has recently been moved. The appellants claim the noise and
dust are disruptive to their lives. Ms. Noel visited the site approximately 20 times during May and June and spoke with the
appellants and the pit operator. Her observations were that the dust or grit observed on multiple surfaces were consistent
with off-site observations and that the noise level was generally minimal to slight unless machinery was running. Machin-
ery ran intermittently during permitted hours between 7 and 5; on many days the machinery did not run at all. When run-
ning, the machinery was primarily heard from the back yard area where the owners have a pool and a deck and was consid-
ered minimum to moderate. On the occasion she was there and machinery was running, the machinery noise was not dis-
ruptive to conversations held in the back yard area. She has given the appellants ample opportunity to provide documenta-
tion supporting any significant loss in value. To date no documentation has been provided. There has been a lot of emotion-
al discussion. The slight reduction in value recommended is mainly due to the relatively few days per year when the rock
crusher is running for consecutive days. Her experience is that the crusher fluctuates between actively crushing and idling
on the days it is being used. In both cases, the appellants have been notified that if documentation is provided, she is open
to reconsidering the property value based on new evidence. She is recommending a 2% reduction in value.

Jordan Walker, a Milord resident, spoke on behalf of her mother Kerry Walker. Ms. Walker said that Doug Knott told John
Shannon that her mother Kerry Walker was not allowed to speak at public meetings. She cited first amendment rights. Ms.
Walker clarified that the letter that was received by the assessor was incorrect: they did not notify the state about the noise;
they talked to the state about the dust. Ms. Walker is curious on how the Assessor can’t tell the difference between pollen
and excess dust. She explained the difference between the two. Ms. Walker said that the Assessor claimed that she went up
and down the road feeling different services and she questions that because she didn’t hear that from any of the neighbors
who have complaints about the same thing. She also didn’t have a camera or any equipment to record anything that was
going on. Next, the Assessor said we agreed that the crusher runs 2 to 3 times a week during 3 seasons and we didn’t agree
to the plus the crusher runs all 4 seasons. The crusher is in the pit 4 times a year and crushes at least 1 to 2 weeks at a time.

4



234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 07/11/2022

The Assessor also compared the crusher running to a motorcycle or diesel running which is incorrect. The crusher’s deci-
mal reading is 60 to 70. The operator of the pit originally told them that they were not going to hear any noise and there
would be no dust. The gravel operation has been in place for 3 years. The 2% reduction does not cover her parent’s finan-
cial burden, pressure washing the house, extra electricity to run the ac’s for noise control, and vet bills on the dog because
of the noise. She also claims that her sister can’t visit the house because the dust flairs up her Crohn’s disease. Ms. Walker
works nights and she can’t sleep because of the pit operation.

Jayson Walker, a Milford resident and the home owner of 224 Mile Slip Road said he has pictures of the dust that comes
out of the gutter and when it rains, the water runs brown. He also said that Jamie from Community Development has come
up and witnessed the plums of dust around the property.

Chairman Dargie said the issue is the valuation of the property and if it’s been decreased because of the situation. There
needs to be documentation to attest to the decrease in valuation. He doesn’t know if you need an appraisal. Ms. Noel said
she requested an appraisal.

Mr. Walker said that Selectman Freel has been up to see everything. Ms. Walker said Mr. Freels exact words where “what
the F do you want me to do about it”, which was unprofessional. Selectman Freel said when he isn’t in the Board room he
will use whatever words he wants to use. There was nothing he could do as a single person while he was there. He
couldn’t go there as a Planning Board member. He also never heard back from them after his visit. He did tell them that
they should bring their case to the Planning Board. He knows that they are frustrated.

Ms. Walker said she is frustrated because this town has yet to help her parents with this issue. Her parents run a small busi-
ness in town and she is sorry that Mr. Dale White is a large business owner and the town doesn’t want to have to go against
him. Itisn’t fair. Her questions is, what is the 2% calculation and how did the Assessor get it, and why were their discrep-
ancies in her abatement.

Chairman Dargie said again, there is only one topic that we can discuss here and you several different issues. Selectman
Freel said that as a property owner in Milford, you have the right to get your own assessment. Chairman Dargie said it’s
possible that environmental factors will affect the appraisal of the property, but it needs to be a valid appraisal from an ap-
praisal company.

Ms. Noel said for consideration, she looked at similar types of situations, properties in other neighborhoods near gravel
operations, granite operations, construction and development sites, highway proximity, locations on a gravel road for dust,
etc. Her conclusion was that under current market conditions, April 1, 2021, there is nothing that is going to affect the
market value for any property. None of those elements for any neighborhood in town had any effect on the value of those
properties; they sold and were purchased consistently at higher than asking price and higher than assessed values.

Selectman Freel has a hard time believing that they are the only ones affected by this. He asked about the neighbors. Ms.
Walker said she had a letter from one of the neighbors which failed to show up here. She thinks that the Town Administra-
tor has it. Mr. Walker said they had a meeting and provided letters. Community Development was at the meeting.

Ms. Noel said this is the first she is hearing about any letters from them or anyone else so she can’t speak to them. Ms.
Walker said it must have been a communication error from you guys. Ms. Noel said, no, it’s her communication with you.
If you didn’t tell me about the letters, she is not going to go looking for things.

Chairman Dargie repeated that the needs to be documentation to justify a change in the assessed value. You can try to find
someone sympathetic. He will be willing to take this up at a future date. As of now, he will be going along with the Asses-
sors recommendation. We always have to document things. The issues with the dog being sick could be a civil case but
doesn’t relate to the assessment on the house.

Ms. Walker said no one is helping them. They have reached too many town officials and everyone is refusing to help. They
won’t answer e-mail or anything anymore. And to say that her mother can’t speak at a public meeting is wrong. Chairman
Dargie said unless someone has a restraining order on them, anyone can come to this meeting so he doesn’t know what Ms.
Walker is talking about. Ms. Walker asked if the Board would look at photos and videos. Chairman Dargie said it isn’t
going to help anything.



290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 07/11/2022

Selectman Freel said we spoke about the gravel operation is it being done to the standards that the Planning Board put on
them. It they are following everything, what can be done. Both this Board and the Planning Board can’t get involved with
what is going on as long as everyone is following the rules. He spoke with them a year ago and this is the first time he’s
seen them since then. He asked if they could go to the Planning Board and tell them their concerns.

Selectman Finan said that is an administrative issue not the Planning Boards issue. It can be brought back to the Planning
Board by staff, but it’s an enforcement issue. At this point, the operator is in compliant with everything.  People have
been out there dozens of times. Ms. Walker said it’s shady though. Whenever the Assessor was out there, the operation
was shut down for the day.

Ms. Noel said she isn’t going to be accused of any of this. This is now out of line and it’s the third time she’s been accused
of this. She is trying to be fair to all parties. Mr. Walker apologized for what his daughter said. Ms. Walker left the room.
Chairman Dargie said that it was uncalled for. You do have an issue but it gets divided up into different buckets and differ-
ent places handle different things. We only handle the valuation of the property.

Selectman Freel said he doesn’t think they will find anyone who will do an assessment on their property for 50% of the
value and even dropping $50,000 will not make you happy. The Assessor is trying to help and he will go along with the
abatement.

Mr. Walker said he will take whatever the Assessor is willing to give. Ms. Noel said the idea of an appraisal is to take the
emotional entanglement that a property owner has with their property, and it could be for something negative or positive,
and it can go both ways. I can’t do an appraisal against my appraisal. The instructions on the abatement form require you
to provide a value. There is no hard and fast number.

Selectman Finan asked that if we approve the Assessors recommendation for approval, can Mr. Walker still appeal. Ms.
Noel said yes. Selectman Freel asked that if we approve this are we saying that there is a problem and we agree with it?

Ms. Noel said that what she is saying is that the value that she has on the home may or may not be the correct value. There
is always leeway of and a 10% difference is reasonable. There is still room for error and a reasonable value could be a few
thousand dollars difference from the value that we have. She is giving that benefit of the doubt without saying that our val-
ue is wrong or there is a problem.

Selectman Finan asked if the Assessor had any other history of making adjustments based on subjective things. Ms. Noel
said yes, based on airplane noise, highway noise, etc. and all have been denied. Selectman Finan is concerned about setting
a bad precedent. Do we have a record of doing this in the past? Ms. Noel said no.

Selectman Freel made a motion to approve the Abatement Application for Approval for Map 50 Lot 4-2 as recom-
mended by the Assessing Director. Seconded by Selectman Daniels. All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

6:10 p.m. - Appointment to the Traffic Safety Committee — Chris Labonte

Jason Plourde, Chair of the Traffic Safety Committee recommends the appointment of Mr. Labonte to the committee. Mr.
Labonte feels would be a good fit for this Committee because he understands the importance of addressing traffic safety
concerns and working together to mitigate any potential issues. He will do his homework and work hard to get the job done
right.

Selectman Daniels made a motion to approve Chris Labonte’s appointment to the Traffic Safety Committee. Se-
conded by Selectman Finan. All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS (regarding items that are not on the agenda)

Leo Lessard, Public Works Director, asked the Board said he has two dead trees and 5 small trees, (8 inches in diameter)
that need to come down on a scenic road, (Mile slip Road). They are in the way of paving. Mr. Daley if trees and other
things like stone walls are a certain diameter, it would have to go before the Planning Board and a public hearing process.
This process requires two public hearings weeks apart and wouldn’t start until August. The Board has the authorization to
allow the town to remove the trees if they propose a health and safety risk. Mr. Lessard said the trees are right in the road
and will end up being in the berm. Mr. Daley said a stone wall has been buried due to years of regrading and maintenance
of the roadway.



347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 07/11/2022

Chairman Dargie asked what the impact would be to follow the normal process. Mr. Lessard said he wouldn’t be about to
start until late August, early September and it would not be paved this year. He’s trying to get the pipework done prior to
school starting. He would like to get a binder this year.

Selectman Finan asked if this process applies to a private homeowner who felt that a tree was dangerous. Mr. Daley said it
applies to Municipal. Mr. Daley asked Mr. Lessard where the Engineering Design was on the roadway. Could you start
tomorrow or do you require additional time? Mr. Lessard said the bid documents are ready and he’s hoping to send every-
thing out on Friday, July 15", He would like to start roadwork within two weeks.

Chairman Dargie asked if the trees were actually hazardous. Mr. Lessard has pictures stating the fact. He explained the
process. Selectman Freel said they are a safety issue. He asked Mr. Daley to explain the process to him. Mr. Daley ex-
plained the process. Chairman Dargie said the road was setup for a reason, although he doesn’t know what it is. Mr. Les-
sard said if you backfill a road, the tree is dead in a couple of years because it buries the roots from 18 to 24 inches.

Paul Amato, a Milford resident and Planning Board member said in 30+ years the Planning Board has never denied a
change to a scenic road change. The process takes a long time. In this case, these trees are hit with the snow plow because
they are right on the road. In some cases, the road is right to the right a way. Mile Slip will still be a scenic road, just safer
and it would save DPW money on maintenance in the long run. There was some discussion about the right a way.

Chairman Dargie asked if there was any chance that if a hearing was held, someone would want to keep the trees. Mr. Am-
ato said no. not anyone on that road. If you start sliding you will slide in the tree, they are in the road. He’s worked with
previous DPW Directors to help with drainage out there and if he did what the Town did, he would be in trouble. Mr. Les-
sard is trying to help fix this. Mr. Amato is fully supportive of taking the trees down.

Selectman Finan just doesn’t want a situation where the Town doesn’t have to abide by its own rules. It does sound like it’s
a legit safety issue. Selectman Freel asked why this wasn’t started about a month or so ago. Mr. Lessard said it was his
fault, he’s been busy out in the field working and he hasn’t had any manpower to keep up. He’s had only 3 guys all sum-
mer.

Dave Palance, a Milford resident, said the town has a policy on these things and they should follow them. Chairman Dargie
said DPW is asking for a waiver, it’s outside of the standard process. Selectman Finan said a safety issue is a legitimate
reason to waive the process.

Selectman Freel made a motion to remove the dead and recommended trees on the scenic road, Mile slip Road as
presented by the Public Works Director. Seconded by Selectman Finan. All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

Katherine Kokko, a Milford resident, said she didn’t see anything on the agenda about MACC Base and updates to the
IMA. The last meeting was on June 15" and Mont Vernon made a request to meet with the other Boards and she hasn’t
heard anything about this. Their next meeting is July 20", Chairman Dargie said he hasn’t heard anything about this.

Captain Frye, Board of Governor, said 5 points were brought up. This Board agreed to go forward with the IMA that was
presented, the draft version so he didn’t bring it up because it’s the same 5 points that you are aware of and you didn’t want
to change them previously.

Ms. Kokko said the request from the other towns was focused on moving ahead with the IMA as it had been negotiated
while having conversations about some of the more difficult topics first knowing that we are committing for a number of
years and there will be some changes moving forward. She didn’t get the impression that it was bringing back the same
things and not bothering to have a conversation.

Captain Frye said Mont Vernon gave the 5 statements that they wanted worked out or at least talked about, and we haven’t
heard anything from Wilton. He suggests waiting for Wilton’s input. Our Board was all set with the 5 year IMA. We need
to sign an IMA and we thought we had a good 5 year IMA. The Mont Vernon representative said they would sign the 5
year agreement and try to discuss any changes in the future.

Ms. Kokko asked this Board to review the last meeting and attend the next one in July.

4. DECISIONS



404
405

406
407
408

409
410
411
412

413
414

415

416
417

418

419
420

421
422
423

424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 07/11/2022

a) CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of Intent to Cut, Map 51 Lot 1 was changed to Report to cut.

2. Acceptance of Gifts of Property under $5,000 (31:95(e)) — K-9 Ballistic Vest for Milford Police Departments K-9 Mako
from Vested Interest in K9s, Inc. — $985.00.1. Request Approval to NOT USE PA-28 Inventory of Taxable Property Form
for 2023.

Marti Noel said she wanted item 1 removed for discussion.
Selectman Daniels moved to remove item 1 from the consent calendar.

Selectman Daniels made a motion to accept item 2 on the consent calendar. Seconded by Selectman Finan. All were
in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

Ms. Noel said it said approval of intent but it’s actually a report to cut. The wood has already been cut and they are record-
ing what’s been cut. The documentation is correct.

Selectman Finan made a motion to accept item 2 on the consent calendar. Seconded by Selectman Daniels. All were
in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

b. OTHER DECISIONS
N/A

5. TOWN STATUS REPORT -
a. Town Status — Town Administrator
1. ARPA Funding - The town staff along with the Water and Sewer Departments and the Wadleigh Library has pre-
pared a list of possible projects on which the remaining American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding may be used.
The BOS will make their decisions based on information provided by a project’s sponsor and all information can
be found on the town website. The ARPA funding should be in by the next Board meeting. We expect a discussion
to take place at the July 25th BOS meeting. A document will be provided that list the proposed items.

Chris Labonte said nothing has been listed on the Town’s website. Tina Philbrick, Executive Assistant, said that the
Town Administrator will be in on Wednesday and she would flag him on it. They were changing things as of last week
so that’s why it might not be on the website. Chairman Dargie said it will be on by the next meeting.

2. Capital Improvements Program (CIP) - The CIP Committee deadline for any and all submissions for the 2023-
2028 CIP has passed. The committee will start meeting in the near future to discuss all submitted items and re-
maining items from the previous list. They intend to complete their review by the end of September 2022.

3. FY23 Budget Cycle Schedule - The draft version of the FY 2023 Budget Cycle Timeline has been developed by
Town staff in cooperation with the Budget Advisory Committee. Once approved by the BOS, it can be found on
the town’s website along with other information concerning this effort.

4. BROX AoT Update - The Town is still working with the NHDES and NHF&G to have a new Alteration of Ter-
rain permit issued for gravel operations at the Brox. Town Representatives are planning to meet with NH DES in
the coming weeks to discuss any remaining concerns. We have no timetable for a final determination at this time.

6. DISCUSSIONS

1. Traffic Safety Concern — Mcgettigan and Savage Road

Bryanna St.Hilaire sent a letter to the Board outlining issues on Megettigan and Savage Road. The 3 way stop intersection
right there is a constant issue.

She has witnessed many accidents and incidents of road rage because of this intersection. Speed is definitely an issue. Re-
cently a dog was hit and killed at this intersection as a direct result of road rage. She has concerns of this happening to an
adult or child walking. She is suggesting possibly a yellow blinking light prior to the intersection. She is requesting that
someone to please come out and possibly assess this and see if there is any way we can improve the safety of this intersec-
tion and just this area in general.



459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467

468

469
470

471
472

473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 07/11/2022

Chief Viola said it’s currently a three way stop and they feel it would benefit with a four way stop. Selectman Daniels said
the intersection that doesn’t have a stop sign is on a hill, people won’t be able to stop in the winter time.

Selectman Finan made a motion send this request to the Traffic Safety Committee. Seconded by Selectman Daniels.
All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS. (Regarding items that are not on the agenda) There were no comments at this time.
8. SELECTMEN’S REPORTS/DISCUSSIONS
a) FROM PROJECTS, SPECIAL BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES

Selectman Freel said Zoning discussed a big project and there will be a visual test on July 14", The Zoning Board would
like to have people weigh in on it. The buildings will be 4 stories high.

b) OTHER ITEMS (that are not on the agenda)

9. APPROVAL OF FINAL MINUTES - Selectman Daniels moved to approve the minutes of June 27, 2022 as
amended. Seconded by Selectman Finan. All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

10. INFORMATION ITEMS REQUIRING NO DECISIONS.
a. Treasurers Report for May 2022.

11. NOTICES. Notices were read.
12. NON-PUBLIC SESSION — N/A

13. ADJOURNMENT: Selectman Daniels moved to adjourn at 8:25 pm. Seconded by Selectman Finan. All were in
favor. The motion passed 4/0.

Paul Dargie, Chairman Laura Dudziak, Member EXCUSED

Tim Finan, Vice-Chairman Dave Freel, Member

Gary Daniels, Member



	APPROVED
	MINUTES OF THE MILFORD BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING
	July 11, 2022
	PRESENT: Paul Dargie, Member     John Shannon, Town Administrator (remote)
	Tim Finan, Member     Tina Philbrick, Executive Assistant
	Gary Daniels, Member    Andy Kouropoulos, Videographer
	Laura Dudziak, Member   EXCUSED
	Dave Freel, Member
	_________________________
	Gary Daniels, Member

